Location: Town Office, Council Chambers
21 Water Street, 2™ Floor

Viewing on: Pioneer Cable — Channel 400
Spectrum Cable — Channel 1301 or Channel 7

Public Participation thru Zoom: Meeting ID: 856 7271 4460

NO PASSCODE NEEDED
CALL-IN: 1-929-205-6099

AGENDA

Special Council Meeting November 10, 2025
5:00 PM

(5110125-1) Council enters into Executive Session with the Town Attorney and
the Assistant Town Manager for the purpose of union negotiations, pursuant to
M.R.S.A Title 1, Section 405(6)D.

V. Adjournment




Location: Town Office, Council Chambers
21 Water Street, 2nd Floor

Viewing on: Pioneer Cable — Channel 400
Spectrum Cable — Channel 1301 or Channel 7

Public Participation thru Zoom: Meeting ID: 856 7271 4460
NO PASSCODE NEEDED
CALL-IN: 1-929-205-6099
AGENDA
Regular Council Meeting November 10, 2025

6:00 PM

Pledge of Allegiance

Public Comments

I Minutes: Special & Regular Council Meeting of October 27, 2025

i, Old Business

l. New Business

A. (110225-1) Council provides a review of the financial status of the first eight
months of the fiscal operation of the 2025 budget by Auditor Ron Smith.

(Public Hearing)

This is a Charter requirement.

B. (110225-2) Council approves the execution of the application to the
Department of Public Safety Bureau of Alcoholic Beverages by Tang’s Chinese
Cuisine located at 60 North Street, for renewal of liquor license.

(Public Hearing)

Approval is required.

C. (110225-3) Council accepts the donation of $6,996 from the Fall Ball
Fundraiser and Chamber of Commerce for the John A. Millar Civic Center.
Thank you for this donation.



D. (110225-4) Council reappoints Becky Day and Stephen Graham as a
member of the Board of Assessment Review for a 3-year term.
Thank you for volunteering.

E. (110225-5) Council appoints Christopher Anderson as the Chairman for
the Board of Assessment Review.
Council is required to appoint the Chairman per Ordinance.

F. (110225-6) Council accepts the low bid of $1,270,295.11 from J.
McLaughlin Construction for the Houlton Downtown Sidewalk Project and
authorizes the Assistant Town Manager to sign all documents pertaining to the
project.

Two bids were received.

IV. Discussion and Reports
Presentation of FY2026 Budget

Council Vacancy

Town Managers Report

o o w »

Councilors’ Remarks

V. Adjournment



Special Council Meeting
October 27, 2025

Chairman Lake called the meeting to order at 5:22 PM with all councilors present, including
Councilor Maguire attending via Zoom.

I Old Business

A, {8100225-1) It was moved by Councilor Schools, seconded by Councilor Craine that
Council enters Executive Session with the Assistant Town Manager and Attorney Burns of
Bernstein Shur via Zoom for the purpose of discussing pending and potential litigation regarding
the Town’s camera system, pursuant to MRSA Title 1, Section 405(6)E.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Craine, yes; Councilor Schools, yes; Councilor McLaughlin,
yes; Councilor Maguire, yes.

Council entered Executive Session at 5:26 PM and returned to Open Session at 6:41 PM.

B. {$100225-2) It was moved by Councilor Craine, seconded by Councilor Schools that
Council agrees to enter into the Settlement Agreement and Release between Mark Lipscombe,
Craig Harriman, Patrick Bruce and the Town of Houlton regarding the Town's camera system.

It was moved by Councilor Craine, seconded by Councilor Schools to amend the order to the
following: Council agrees to sign the amended settlement agreement and release between Mark
Lipscombe, Craig Harriman, Patrick Bruce and the Town of Houlton regarding the Town’s camera
system.

Vote to amend the order was taken as follows: Councilor Maguire, yes; Councilor Craine, yes;
Councilor Schools, yes; Councilor McLaughlin, yes.

Vote to approve the amended order was taken as follows: Councilor McLaughlin, yes; Councilor
Schools, yes; Councilor Craine, yes; Councilor Maguire, yes.

. New Business

A. ($100425-1) It was moved by Councilor Craine, seconded by Councilor Schools that
Council enter Executive Session with the Assistant Town Manager and Emma Peterson for the
purpose of discussing the disposition of property where premature disclosure of the information
would prejudice the position of the Town, pursuant to MRSA Title 1, Section 405(6)C.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Schools, yes; Councilor Craine,
yes; Councilor Maguire, yes.

Council entered Executive Session at 6:49 PM and returned to Open Session at 6:56 PM.

B. {8100425-2) It was moved by Councilor Craine, seconded by Councilor Schools that
Council authorizes the Assistant Town Manager to enter into a Purchase and Sales Agreement
between the Town of Houlton and Daniel Clark for the purchase of 460 B Road for $10,000.

Chair Lake noted that this is a tax acquired property, and new law requires that it be listed with a
real estate agent.

Councilor Schools noted that this is a property that the town has had for a long time and is now
being sold.



Councilor McLaughlin noted that we did have a long list of town properties that no one had bid on,
and this property is one of them.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Schools, yes; Councilor Craine,
yes; Councilor Maguire, yes.

Adjournment: On motion by Councilor Schools, seconded by Councilor McLaughlin the meeting
adjourned at 6:59 PM with all in favor.



Regular Council Meeting
October 27, 2025

Chairman Lake called the meeting to order at 6:59 PM with all councilors present, including
Councilor Maguire attending via Zoom.

Public Comments

Mark Lipscombe, Houlton resident, invited the Council to outline what the amendments were from
the passage of the motion to agree to the settlement, given that the changes were not laid on the
table. Assistant Town Manager Wampler noted that the changes were minor, with the revisions
including one word being removed, and then a timeframe changing from 15 days to 30 days.
Assistant Town Manager Wampler noted that the attorney is going to be emailing an updated
agreement for review,

Carl Lord Jr., Houlton resident, noted that he was out of town when stuff recently hit the fan. Mr.
Lord shared that in the state of Maine, if you work for a company and you get fired, you are at the
discretion of your employer. Mr. Lord noted that he believes that Mr. Clark should be fired with no
vote,

Mr. Lord noted that the town of Houlton spends thousands of dollars on economic development
and noted that businesses won’t want to come here with the huge black cloud over the town. Mr.
Lord noted that Mr. Clark is on leave and makes maybe $130,000.00/year, that's roughly $25,000 a
month. Mr. Lord noted what you could buy for this amount, two and a half police cars, and a pretty
good-sized dump truck.

Mr. Lord noted that the town could be paying Mr. Clark until February or longer. Mr. Lord is hoping
that the councilors will get together with the town attorney or another attorney altogether to avoid
any potential conflict. Mr. Lord noted that he plans to keep harping on this because he feels it is
wrong. He noted that he felt getting rid of Mr. Clark would make the black cloud go away.

Public Works Director Chris Stewart addressed members of Council, the Assistant Town Manager
and informed everyone that he handed in his letter of resignation today and that November 18" will
be his last day in the office. Director Stewart thanked the town of Houlton for the opportunity that
he has had here over the last 11 years.

Most of all, Director Stewart wanted to thank the employees at the Public Works Department,
Houlton International, and Park Maintenance. He noted that the employees were loyal, always ready
for the job and always do a great job. He noted that the employees don’t get enough credit for the
work they do. He noted that he wanted to thank the town and the employees that work for him.

Police Chief DeLuca noted that he has been in public service for 41-years, and that it has been rare
that he ever worked with such a professional as Chris Stewart. Chief Deluca noted that Director
Stewart’s knowledge, skills and what he brings to a community and his dedication to the mission
of this town is absolutely rare and we will have a hard time finding somebody to fill those shoes.
Chief Deluca personally thanked Director Stewart as they work close together. Chief Deluca noted
that Director Stewart absolutely works for the betterment of this community. Chief Deluca’s
experience reflects upon his 41-years of experience and the knowledge and what is observed in
Director Stewart as a person, as an employee, and as a public servant. Chief Deluca noted that we
will see the aftermath of Director Stewarts resignation and thanked Director Stewart for his service.

Chair Lake thanked Director Stewart for his service, and noted that he will be definitely missed.
Chair Lake noted that he is glad he got to know Director Stewart and noted that he has done an
outstanding job for his staff and this town.



I Minutes: it was moved by Councilor Craine, seconded by Councilor Schools that the
Special Council Meeting of October 10, 2025 and Special & Regular Council Meeting of October
14, 2025 minutes be approved as presented.

All were in favor of the minutes.
il. Old Business

A (5100225-4)  Chair Lake declared the Public Hearing open on the following: The Town of
Houlton ordains that Chapter 7 General Assistance Appendix A, B, C, D, E, F, G and H dated October
1, 2024 to September 30, 2025 of the Houlton Code be replaced with General Assistance Appendix
A, B, C,D, E, F, G and H dated October 1, 2025 to September 30, 2026. (Note: The document in its
entirety is available at the Town Office during normal business hours.)

Appendix A — Total Monthly Allowed GA Maximums

AppendixB - Food Maximums

Appendix C — Housing Maximums

Appendix D - Utilities

Appendix E - Heating Fuel

Appendix F - Personal Care & Household

Appendix G — Mileage Rate

Appendix H - Funeral Maximums
Chair Lake noted that the maximums are reviewed annually by the state and amended as needed.

There being no public comments, the Chairman closed the Public Hearing.

It was moved by Councilor Schools, seconded by Councilor McLaughlin to approve the order.
Councilor Craine asked how the totals are reached for this program, if it is like a cost of living
increase. Assistant Town Manager Wampler explained that these figures are received from the

State, these are the minimum maximums that we can have.

Vote to approve the order taken as follows: Councilor Maguire, yes; Councilor Craine, yes;
Councilor Schools, yes; Councilor McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

. New Business

A. (100225-1) It was moved by Councilor Craine, seconded by Councilor McLaughlin that
Council approves postponing the review of the town’s financial status for the first eight months of
fiscal year 2025, to be presented by Auditor Ron Smith.

Councilor Lake noted that Ron Smith was unable to attend, and that this will take place on November
10, 2025.

Vote to approve postponing the review was taken as follows: Councilor McLaughlin, yes; Councilor
Schools, yes; Councilor Craine, yes; Councilor Maguire, yes.

The order passed.

B. (100225-2) It was moved by Councilor Craine, seconded by Councilor Schools that
Council reappoint Carl Lord Jr. as a member of the Board of Assessment Review for a 3-year term.



Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Maguire, yes; Councilor Craine, yes; Councilor Schools, yes;
Councilor McLaughlin, yes.

C. (100225-3) it was moved by Councilor Schools, seconded by Councilor Craine that
Council reappoints Francis Fitzpatrick as a member of the Board of Assessment Review for a 3-
year term.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Schools, yes; Councilor Craine,
yes; Councilor Maguire, yes.

The order passed.

D. {100225-4) It was moved by Councilor Maguire, seconded by Councilor Craine that
Council appoints Christopher Anderson as a member of the Board of Assessment Review for a 3-
year term.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Maguire, yes; Councilor Craine, yes; Councilor Schools, yes;
Councilor McLaughlin, yes.

The order passed.

E. {100225-5) It was moved by Councilor Craine, seconded by Councilor Schools that
Council appoints Erica Peabody as a member of the Board of Assessment Review for a 3-year
term.

Councilor McLaughlin thanked Erica and all of the board members named above who are willingne
to serve the town and that it means a lot that the town can continue to move forward with those who
are willing to serve in order to improve our town, Thank you!

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Schools, yes; Councilor Craine,
yes; Councilor Maguire, yes.

The order passed.

F. (100225-6) It was moved by Councilor Schools, seconded by Councilor Craine that
Council affirms the resolution to authorize and direct Nancy Ketch, Community Development
Director & Grant Writer to sign any documents pertaining to the Northern Border Regional
Commission award in the amount of $978,880 for the Airport Fuel Farm Replacement Project.
Chair Lake noted that this is required when there is a change in authorized signers.

Vote was taken as follows: Councilor McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Schools, yes; Councilor Craine,
yes; Councilor Maguire, yes.

The order passed.

G. 100225-7) It was moved by Councilor Schools, seconded by Councilor Craine that
Council authorize the execution of the application to the Department of Public Safety Gambling
Control Unit for Houlton Elks Lodge #835 to hold a Texas Hold Em Poker Tournament on
November 16, 2025.

Chair Lake noted that approval is required.

Councilor Craine asked if they have ever done one of these before. it was explained that this was
to bypass needing approval each time they wanted to hold a tournament.



Vote was taken as follows: Councilor Maguire, yes; Councilor Craine, yes; Councilor Schools,
yes; Councilor McLaughlin, yes.
The order passed.

H. {100225-8) It was moved by Councilor Schools, seconded by Councilor Craine that
Council authorizes execution of the Blanket Letter of Approval to the Department of Public Safety
Gambling Control Unit for the Houlton Elks Lodge to operate Texas Hold' em through October 31,
2030.

Chair Lake noted that this is to allow them to apply with the state and not need Council approval
for each date.

Councilor McLaughlin asked how often they will be doing this, as it does not seem as though they
do this often. It was noted that they would like to start doing them one day a month. McLaughlin
asked for clarification that it wouldn’t be every day as some people struggle with addiction to
gambling. It was explained that they would need to apply for and pay for each date they wish to
play through the state.

Vote was taken as follows: Councitor McLaughlin, yes; Councilor Schools, yes; Councilor Craine,
yes; Councilor Maguire, yes.

The order passed.

. Discussion and Reports

A Town Managers Report
Assistant Town Manager Wampler reminded everyone that the last day to request an absentee

ballot is this Thursday, October 30', and our office will be open until 6:00 PM that evening for
voting purposes only and that the election is next Tuesday, November 4", at the Gentle Memorial
Building at 128 Main Street, the polls are open from 7:00 AM to 8:00 PM.

Assistant Town Manager Wampler also noted that tonight is Councilor McLaughlin’s last Town
Council Meeting and thanked her. Chairman Lake thanked Eileen for her service these {ast few
years and noted it has been an honor for him to serve with her.

B. Councilors’ Remarks

Councilor Craine thanked everyone that has shown up, and reminded everyone that he wants to
hear their input, feel free to reach out anytime, email, follow on social media, get your comments
to him and he'll see what he can do to help make this town better,

Councilor McLaughlin welcomed aboard the new members, and those who will be applying, and
looks forward to see how things will settle with who ends up on the boards and on the Council.
Councilor McLaughlin noted that people do really work hard. Councilor McLaughlin noted that it
has been a full house lately and she appreciates those who do show up and hopes everyone will
continue to show up and reminded everyone that everybody has the opportunity to be heard. She
reminded everyone that there is an open time before every meeting where people can speak up.
Councilor McLaughlin noted that she herself has been transparent from day one, and that's why
she ran to be a part of Town Council.

She noted that recently there was talk about things happening behind closed doors and noted that
that’s not how she does things. She noted that they were tasked with getting a quorum and feels
they did what was right and just the best they could. She noted that she feels very appreciative of
those who were picked and noted that for those of you who submitted interest later in the day,

and are dissatisfied with not being selected, please continue to pursue it. Councilor McLaughlin
noted that after the upcoming vote, we will know how many seats might be available and that
there were no group chats or behind closed doors discussion.

4



Councilor McLaughlin noted that we are in a period of growth, however she does disagree with
Mr. Lord that there is not a dark cloud over this town, and there has been a lot of defamatory
comments being put out lately. Councilor McLaughlin noted she believes that this town is in a
restoration process.

Councilor McLaughlin noted that she is looking forward to seeing changes with positions, and is
disappointed to lose those who have resigned, She noted that Director Stewart has done a lot for
the town for many years and it will be difficult to find someone to fill his shoes but hopes that it
can be done in another seamless way. She noted that people are very thankful for those that have
been working on the roads and the parks. She also noted her appreciation for the commitment of
moving forward at the airport and making beautiful changes and improvements.

Councilor McLaughlin noted that she knows that faith needs to be restored in our town but feels
we are a rare gem, a place of tourism. She noted that SADC, NMDC and all the economic
development groups are united in trying to move forward. She noted that this is a beautiful place
to live, work and to raise children. She noted that our school system is changing rapidly and
hates to hear degrading language used about our town as it won’t do anybody any good.

Councilor McLaughlin noted that she would like to see the town move forward and believes that
things will change, that empty storefronts downtown will be filled by great companies. She noted
that the town has many small businesses and large businesses. She noted the efforts to improve
the sidewalks in town.

Councilor McLaughlin noted that she did not participate in Council for admiration but the ability to
use her voice to help solve problems with the council, instead of complaining, she decided to join
it and noted that it is okay to have disagreements. Councilor McLaughlin noted that she is hoping
that the divisiveness will wither and that the people will unite. Councilor McLaughlin noted that
she thinks it will take public encouragement and promotion, not wordage that tears individuals in
the town down. Councilor McLaughlin mentioned a recent local newspaper article heading
“Who's running the town”, and that people stepped up so that there would be a quorum, and
believes that this transition was made as seamless as it could be. She noted that it didn’t happen
in a behind-the-door way and noted that she is sick of being shredded. She noted that she feels
that she is a woman of integrity, honesty and hardworking as possible.

Councilor McLaughlin noted that she sees the light and hope for a town that does not need to be
shredded. She noted that she does appreciate this town, it has been a difficult time as of late, but
she has always cared about every citizen here and has always tried to address concerns.
Councilor McLaughlin noted that yes, she is tangential, is not concise but what she is, is honest
and once she leaves will always be open to answer any questions for anyone in town. She noted
that she never wanted to be a politician, all she wanted to do was help the town and is hopeful
that we can unite, march forward with light and love, and not rejoice in evil but unite in love; let’s
build on our strengths and move forward.

Chairman Lake apologized for the late start of the meeting. He noted how great it was to see a
downtown full of kids over the weekend. He thanked multiple department heads for all their hard
work and noted the importance of everyone working together.

V. Adjournment: On motion by Councilor Craine, seconded by Councilor McLaughlin, the
meeting adjourned at 7:36 PM with all in favor.

Signed,

Tamara Merritt
Recording Secretary



& State of Maine E B°BaS;t;:::;z:::ﬂt

B T
| Application Copy

r File Number: 108853 Job Type:  Renewatl Application

‘ i

. LICENSE # APPLICATION DATE RECEIVED |
CAR-03-106584 2025-10-16

LICENSE TYPE LICENSEE

| On-Premises: Beer, Wine & Spirits ~ WING XING SHENG, INC.

AGENT NAME EFFECTIVE DATE
2024-11-02
EXPIRES STATUS
| 2025-11-01 Active

| PREMISES NAME
TANG'S CHINESE CUISINE

NEW SECONDARY LICENSE(S)
None selected

PREMISES TYPE PREMISES NAME
Class A Restaurant TANG'S CHINESE CUISINE
. OPERATOR

| WING XING SHENG, INC.

PHYSICAL ADDRESS
| 60 NORTH ST HOULTON ME 04730-1835

| MAILING ADDRESS
60 NORTH ST HOULTON ME 04730-1835

CONTACT NAME PREFERRED CONTACT METHOD
TANGS CHINSES Email



John A. Millar Civic Center
94 Randall Ave.
Houlton, ME 04730

civic.center@houlton-maine.com
207-694-0439

To: Town Manager and Town Council
From: Serenna Fitzpatrick, JMCC Supervisor
Date: November 5, 2025

RE: Request to accept donation

Request to accept a donation from Fall Ball Fundraiser and Chamber of Commerce in the amount of $6996
to be deposited into the sponsorship account for the John A Millar Civic Center.

All of us at John A. Millar Civic Center are very grateful for the generous donation and for community’s
continued support for the growth and development of our youth and our beautiful Facility.

Serenna Fitzpatrick, Supervisor



TOWN OF HOULTON

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
21 WATER STREET ¢ HOULTON, MAINE 04730

Phone: (207) 521-5938 comm.dcvelopment@houlton-maine.com Fax: 207-532-1304

MEMO

To:  Khylee Wampler, Assistant Town Manager & Houlton Town Councilors
From: Nancy Ketch, Community Development Director
Date: November 5, 2025

Re:  Downtown Sidewalk Project — Bids & Contract Awarding

After many years of work with Maine DOT and our engineering firm, Sewall, the Downtown Sidewalk Project is
coming to fruition. A Request for Bids from contractors was posted on September 17*, 2025 with bids being
open on October 23", 2025. There were two bidders — J. McLaughlin Construction and Brown Construction. J.
McLaughlin Construction was the low bidder at $1,270,295.11. | recommend J. McLaughlin Construction be
awarded the contract for this project. Brown Construction's bid was $1,439,890.00.

This is a Locally Administered Project (LAP) through Maine DOT identified by Federal Aid Project No. 2221600,
WIN 22216.00. A 20% match is required from the Town of Houlton which has been planned to come from the
Downtown TIF Infrastructure Account.

A copy of the Bid Tabulation, the DOT Authorization to Award Letter and the Contract are attached for your
review. If | can provide further clarification or answer any questions about the project, please feel free to
contact me. | will be available at the November 10, 2025 Town Councii Meeting to provide further explanation
and answer questions.



STATE OF MAINE
DEPARIMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
16 STATE HOUSE STAIION
AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333-0016

Janet T. Mills Dale F. Doughty
GOVERNCR ACTING COMMISSIONER
October 31, 2025
Nancy Ketch

Community Development Director
Town of Houlton

21 Water Street

Houlton, ME 04730

Subject: Authorization to Award
Federal Project Number 2221600, MaineDOT WIN 022216.00
Houlton — Downtown Sidewalks, Sidewalk Reconstruction

Dear Nancy:

MaineDOT has received and reviewed the bid tabulations from the 10/23/2025 bid opening
and engineer’s estimate for the reconstruction of sidewalks on Market Square, Main Street,
Water Street, and Broadway, in the Town of Houlton.

Your request to award the contract has been approved. The Town is authorized to award the
contract to the apparent successful bidder, J. McLaughlin Construction, LLC of Houlton, ME, for
$1,270,295.11.

Once the contract is executed, please send me copies of the award notice and signed contract.

After the contract is awarded, please invite our Construction Manager, Thomas Stevens, and
me to the pre-construction meeting for the project. Tom may be reached at

thomas.stevens@maine.gov or at 207-592-4508.

If the MaineDOT can assist with anything or if you have any questions, please email me at
daniel.m.loring@maine.gov or call me at 207-624-3451 or 207-592-4757.

Sincerely,

Daniel Loring, PE

Senior Project Manager
Multimodal Program

Bureau of Project Development

THE MAINE BEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION I8 AN AFFIRMATIVE ACTION - EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
PHONE: (207) 624-3000 TTY USERS CALL MAINE RELAY 711 FAX: [207) 624-3001



WIN 2221600 Houlton Downtown Sidewatks Project

2025.10.23 Bid Tabulation
ITEM NO, DESCRIPTION QUANT. | UNIT|_J-McLaughiin Construction, LLC Brown Constructlon, Ine,
Unit Price Bid Amount Unit Price Bid Amount
202,128 REMOVE EXIST CONCRETE CURB & SIDEWALK 90 Jcy $60.60 $5,454.00 $100.00 $9,000.00
203.20 COMMON EXCAVATION 1,775 [cy $32.70 $58,042.60 $27.00 $47,925.00
304.10 |AGG SUBBASE COURSE - D GRAVEL 2,300 [cY $42.33 $97,359.00 $58.00 $126,500,00
403,209 |HOT MIX ASPHALT, $.5 MM {INCIDENTALS, SW, DRIVES} $15 [ToN $310.34 $159,828.10 $355.00 $182,325.00
[402.210 HOT MIX ASPHALT, 9.5 MM 185 JTON $526.67 $97,248.95 $800.00 $111,000.00
03,1021 TEXTURED ASPHALT PAVEMENT 1,500 |SY $45.65 $72,127.00 $54.00 $35,320.00
502.2201 STRUCT. CONC RETAINING WALL AT TOWN & COUNTRY 1|Ls $30,704.32 $30,704,32 $21,000.00 $21,000.00
502.4951 STRUCT, CONCRETE RING WITH 4X4 TREE GRATES 13 JEA 54,300.70 $56,909.10 $4.000.00 $52,000.00
502.4952 STRUCT. CONCRETE RING WITH 3XS TREE GRATES 10 |[EA $4,288.03 $42,880.30 $4,000.00 $40,
603,169 16" CULVERY PIPE OPTION Il 40 [LF $70.09 $2,80.60 $80.00 $3,200.00 |
[604.13 ADJUST CATCH BASIN/MANHOLE TO GRADE 12 [EA $T74.11 $9,289.32 $2,500.00 $30,000.00
604.1811 ADJUST CATCH BASIN TO GRADE & NEW CURB INLET 20 [EA $2,022.21 $40,444.20 $2,000.00 $58,000.00
604.252 CATCH BASIN TYPE A5-C 11EA $5,305.44 $5,305.44 $5,100.00 $5,100.00
408.2¢ CURS RAMP DETECTABLE WARNING FIELD 490 I8F $95.1¢ $46,509.00 $155.00 $76,950.00
[1809.11 VERTICAL CURB TYPE 1 [GRANITE} 40 LF $91.00/ $67,340.00 $88.00 $65,120.00
lls09.2 VERTICAL CURB TYPE 1 - CIRCULAR [GRANITE} 230 JLF $122.08 $28,078,40 $88.00 $20,240.0¢
609.221 TERMINAL CURE TYPE 1 (GRANITE 390 JLF $95.04 $37,065.60 $88.00 $34,320,00
609,222 TERMINAL CURE TYPE 1 - CIRCULAR [GRANITE} 170 JLF $127,20/ $21,624.00 $88.00 $14,960.00
809,38 RESET CURB TYPE 1 1,480 |LF $56.61 $83.782.80 $78.00 $115,440.00
§18.07 LOAM 50 Jcy $56.66 $2,833.00 $65.00 $3,250.00
§18.13 SEEDING METHOD NG, 1 4 |unm $110.67 $442.68 $250.00, $1,000,00
619.12 MULCH 4 JuNIT $140.67 $442.68 $200.00 $300.00
627,733 4" YIW PAVEMENT MARKING LINE 1,200 |LF $2.21 $2,652.00 $4.00 $4,800.00
§27.75 YW PAVEMENT MARKING 3,500 [sF $0.72 $2,520.00 $4.00 $14,000.00
834.2085 RESET EXIST LIGHT ICONCRETE BASE EA $1,615.58 $3,231,18 $5,000.00 $10,000.00
634.2086 RELOCATE EXIST LIGHT/CONCRE TE BASE IE $13,513.58 §13,513.50 $12,000.00 $12,000.00
634.7041 LIGHT POLE/LUMINAIRE ON EXISTING BASE EA $14,353,65 $14,353.85 $6,000.00 $6,000.00
646.116 REINST REG, WRN, CONF, 8 RTE MARKER SIGN 22 [ea $92.38 $2,032.36 $300.00 $6,500.00
s43.118 REINST POLE 18 IEA $148.20 $2,777.40 $300.00 $5,700.00
545.211 REG WARNING SIGN, TYPE | 520 [SF $18.53 $9,835.60 $40.00 $20,800,00
645.280 WOoOoD POST 41 [EA $207.46 $8.505.96 $300.00 $12,300.00
852,33 ORUM 50 [EA $83.00 $4,150.00 3$60.00 $3,000.00
652,34 CONE 150 JEA $29.88 $4.482.00 $40.00 $6,000.00
652.35 CONSTRUCTION SIGNS 270 |5F $17.98 $4,854.60 $12.00 $3,240.00
652.36 MAINT GF TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 112 [cp $147.49) $16,518.33 $400.00 $44,800.0¢
652,38 FLAGGER 120.0 [HR $50.08 $6,009.60 $55.00 $6,600.00
656.75 TEMP SOIL EROSION & WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 1.0]Ls $12.375.86 $12,675.36 $30,000.00 $30,000.00
659.10 |moBILIZATION 1.0fLs $194,447.17 $194,447.17 $148,100.00 $148,100.00
801.03 TEST PITS 50 |EA $426.80 $2,134.00 $600.00 $3,000.00
TOTAL $1,270,295.11 $1,439.890.00




CONTRACT AGREEMENT, OFFER & AWARD

AGREEMENT made on the date last signed below, by and between the Municipality of Houlton,
a municipal corporation with its principal administrative offices located at 21 Water Street,
Houlton, Maine 04730 and

T MUauiMlin Cbaﬁ‘t(uc‘kcn.LLQ

a corporation or other legal entity organized under the laws of the State of (V]a < ,
with its principal place of business located at | 7+ Rongor SC Howten, Me O413e

The Municipality and the Contractor, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth in this
Agreement (the “Contract”), hereby agree as follows:

A,

The Work.

The Contractor agrees to complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract,
including Extra Work in conformity with the Contract, WIN 22216.00 for Houlton
Downtown Sidewalk Project in the municipality of Houlton, County of Aroostook, Maine.
The Work includes the reconstruction of sidewalks and pedestrian crossings on Market
Square, Main Street, Water Street, and Broadway; also includes bituminous pavement, new
granite curb, resetting existing granite curb, stamping/coloring sidewalk segments, some
lighting resetting/relocating work, new lighting, catch basin/storm drain installation,
concrete work around trees, concrete retaining wall, maintenance during construction,
warranty as provided in the Contract, and other incidental work.

The Contractor shall furnish all supervision, labor, equipment, tools, supplies, and materials
required to perform the Work. The Contractor further shall be responsible for construction
quality control including inspection, testing and documentation, all required documentation
at the conclusion of the project, warranting its work and performing all other work indicated
in the Contract.

The Municipality shall have the right to alter the nature and extent of the Work as provided
in the Contract; payment to be made as provided in the same.

Time.

The Contractor agrees to complete all Work, except warranty work, on or before 112
calendar days or October 2, 2026, whichever comes first. Furthermore, the Municipality
may deduct from money otherwise due the Contractor, not as a penalty, but as Liquidated
Damages in accordance with sections 107.7 and 107.8 of the Maine Department of
Transportation (MaineDOT) Standard Specifications (March 2020 Edition) and related
Special Provisions.

Page 1 0of 4 (Rev. April 2020)



F.

Price.

The quantities given in the Schedule of Items of the Bid Package will be used as the basis
for determining the original Contract amount and for determining the amounts of the
required Performance Surety Bond and Payment Surety Bond, and that the amount of this
offeris  Ope mulllin Gun Rinded 0o oiard T

Pty gt deblon of eloctn Conty

(81,270,299 .14 ), Performance Bond and Payment Bond each being 100%
of the amount of this Contract.

Contract.

This Contract, which may be amended, modified, or supplemented in writing only, consists
of the Contract documents as defined in the Plans, MaineDOT Standard Specifications
(March 2020 Edition) and Standard Details (March 2020 Edition), as updated through
advertisement, Supplemental Specifications, Special Provisions, Contract Agreement; and
Contract Bonds. It is agreed and understood that this Contract will be governed by the
documents listed above.

Certifications.

By signing below, the Contractor hereby certifies that to the best of the Contractor’s
knowledge and belief:

1. All of the statements, representations, covenants, and/or certifications required or set
forth in the Bid and the Bid Documents, including those in the Federal Contract
Provisions Supplement, and the Contract are still complete and accurate as of the date of
this Agreement.

2. The Contractor knows of no legal, contractual, or financial impediment to entering into
this Contract.

3. The person signing below is legally authorized by the Contractor to sign this Contract on
behalf of the Contractor and to legally bind the Contractor to the terms of the Contract.

Offer.

The undersigned, having carefully examined the site of work, the Plans, MaineDOT
Standard Specifications (March 2020 Edition) and Standard Details (March 2020 Edition),
as updated through advertisement, Supplemental Specifications, Special Provisions,
Contract Agreement; and Contract Bonds contained herein for construction of:

Page 2 of 4 {Rev. April 2020)



WIN 22216.00 — Houlton Downtown Sidewalks Project,

on which bids will be received until the time specified in the “Notice to Contractors” do(es)
hereby bid and offer to enter into this contract to supply all the materials, tools, equipment
and labor to construct the whole of the Work in strict accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Contract at the unit prices in the attached “Schedule of Items.”

The Offeror agrees to perform the work required at the price specified above and in
accordance with the bids provided in the attached “Schedule of Items” in strict accordance
with the terms of this solicitation, and to provide the appropriate insurance and bonds if this
offer is accepted by the Municipality in writing.

The Offeror also agrees:

First: To do any extra work, not covered by the attached “Schedule of Items,” which may
be ordered by the Project Resident, and to accept as full compensation the amount
determined upon a “Force Account” basis as provided in the MaineDOT Standard
Specifications (March 2020 Edition), and as addressed in the contract documents.

Second: That the bid bond at 5% of the bid amount or the official bank check, cashier’s
check, certificate of deposit or U.S. Postal Money Order in the amount given in the “Notice
to Contractors™ payable to the Municipality of Houlton and accompanying this bid, shall be
forfeited, as liquidated damages, if in case this bid is accepted, and the undersigned shall fail
to abide by the terms and conditions of the offer and fail to furnish satisfactory insurance
and Contract bonds under the conditions stipulated in the Specifications within 15 days of
notice of intent to award the contract.

Third: To begin the Work as stated in Section 107.2 of the MaineDOT Standard
Specifications (March 2020 Edition) and complete the Work within the time limits given in
the Special Provisions of this Contract.

Fourth: The Contractor will be bound to the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
Requirements contained in the attached Notice (Additional Instructions to Bidders) and
submit a completed Contractor’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Utilization Plan with
their bid.

Fifth: That this offer shall remain open for 60 calendar days afier the date of opening of
bids.

Sixth: The Bidder hereby cettifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief that: The Bidder
has not, either directly or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any
collusion, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of competitive bidding in connection
with its bid, and its subsequent contract with the Municipality.

Page3 of 4 (Rev. April 2020)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Contractor, for itself, its successors and assigns, hereby execute
two duplicate originals of this Agreement and thereby binds itself to all covenants, terms, and
obligations contained in the Contract Documents,

CONTRACTOR
Date (Slggature of Legally Authorized Representative
of the Contractor)
S AuAt=— Toshue pitagllie Presde £
Witness (Name and Title Printed)

G. Award.

Your offer is hereby accepted. This award consummates the Contract, and the documents
referenced herein.

MUNICIPALITY OF Houlton

Date

Witness

Page 4 of 4 (Rev. Aprit 2020}



